CITY OF PAWTUCKET

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS



14-076
Five Year Consolidated Plan
Annual Action Plan

Contents:

- 1.0 **Bid/Solicitation Information**
- 2.0 Instructions and Notifications to Bidders
- 3.0 Overview
- Scope of Work 4.0
- 5.0 Insurance
- Acknowledgement of Risk and Hold Harmless Agreement 6.0
- Additional Insurance Requirements 7.0
- Proposal Content and Organization 8.0
- **Evaluation Criteria** 9.0
- 10.0 Miscellaneous
- 11.0 Bid Form

Appendix A Anti-Kickback Acknowledgement

City of Pawtucket Purchasing Rules and Regulations and Terms and Conditions of Purchase Appendix B

1.0 - Bid/Solicitation Information

Schedule

Pre-Bid/Proposal Conference: X No Yes

Requests for Further Information:

Requests for information or clarification must be made <u>electronically</u> to the attention of:

David Clemente - Purchasing Agent E-mail: dclemente@pawtucketri.com

Please reference the RFP / LOI number on all correspondence. Answers to questions received, if any, will be posted on the internet as an addendum to this bid solicitation.

RFP Submission Deadline: November 13, 2014 at 10:00 AM

Late submittals will not be considered.

Proposals must be mailed or hand-delivered in a sealed envelope **marked with the RFP/Bid # and Project Name** to:

Pawtucket City Hall - Purchasing Office 137 Roosevelt Avenue Pawtucket, RI 02860

Bonds/Surety Required

Surety	Bond:	X	No	Yes

Bidder is required to provide a bid surety in the form of a bid bond or certified check payable to the City of Pawtucket in an amount not less than five percent (5%) of the bid price.

Fidelity Bond: **★** No Yes

Performance Bond: x No ☐ Yes

The successful bidder will be required to furnish all insurance documentation as outlined in the attached Purchasing Rules & Regulations and General Terms & Conditions of Purchase.

Miscellaneous

The bid process and resulting contract are subject to the Rules and Regulations and General Terms and Conditions of Purchase. Submission of a bid in response to this solicitation is acknowledgement and acceptance of these Rules and Regulations and General Terms and Conditions of Purchase.

The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to award on the basis of cost alone, accept or reject any or all bids, and to act in its best interest including, but not limited to, directly negotiating with any vendor who submits a proposal in response to this RFP and to award a contract based upon the results of those negotiations alone. Proposals found to be technically or substantially non-responsive at any point in the evaluation process will be rejected and not considered further. The City of Pawtucket may, at its sole option, elect to require presentations(s) by bidders clearly in consideration for award.

2.0 - Instructions and Notifications to Bidders

- It is the vendor's responsibility to examine all specifications and conditions thoroughly, and comply fully with specifications and all attached terms and conditions. Vendors must comply with all Federal, State, and City laws, ordinances and regulations, and meet any and all registration requirements where required for contractors as set forth by the State of Rhode Island. Failure to make a complete submission as described herein may result in a rejection of the proposal.
- All costs associated with developing or submitting a proposal in response to this Request, or to provide oral or written clarification of its content shall be borne by the bidder. The City of Pawtucket assumes no responsibility for these costs.
- A submittal may be withdrawn by written request to the Purchasing Agent by the proposer prior to the stated RFP deadline.
- Prior to the proposal deadline established for this RFP, changes may be made to a proposal already received by the City if that vendor makes a request to the Purchasing Agent, in writing, to do so. No changes to a proposal shall be made after the RFP deadline.
- Proposals are considered to be irrevocable for a period of not less than ninety (90) days following the opening date, and may not be withdrawn, except with the express written permission of the Purchasing Agent. Should any vendor object to this condition, the vendor must provide objection through a question and/or complaint to the Purchasing Agent prior to the proposal deadline.
- All pricing submitted will be considered to be firm and fixed unless otherwise indicated herein.
- The vendor has full responsibility to ensure that the proposal arrives at the Purchasing Division Office prior to the deadline set out herein. The City assumes no responsibility for delays caused by the U.S. Postal Service or any other delivery service. Postmarking by the due date will not substitute for actual receipt of response by the due date. Proposals arriving after the deadline may be returned, unopened, to the vendor, or may simply be declared non-responsive and not subject to evaluation, at the sole discretion of the Purchasing Agent. For the purposes of this requirement, the official time and date shall be that of the time clock in the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Office.
- It is intended that an award pursuant to this Request will be made to a prime contractor, who will assume responsibility for all aspects of the work. Joint venture and cooperative proposals will not be considered, but subcontracts are permitted, provided that their use is clearly indicated in the bidder's proposal, and the subcontractor(s) proposed to be used are identified in the proposal.
- Bidders are advised that all materials submitted to the City of Pawtucket for consideration in response to this Request for Proposals shall be considered to be public records as defined in Title 38 Chapter 2 of the Rhode Island General Laws, without exception, and may be released for inspection immediately upon request once an award has been made.

- Vendors are responsible for errors and omissions in their proposals. No such error or omission shall diminish the vendor's obligations to the City.
- The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof, at any time, with no penalty. The City also has the right to waive immaterial defects and minor irregularities in any submitted proposal at its sole discretion. All material submitted in response to this RFP shall become the property of the City of Pawtucket upon delivery to the Purchasing Agent.
- There is no official, public opening of proposals. The City asks that companies refrain from requesting proposal information concerning other respondents until an intention to award is determined, as a measure to best protect the solicitation process, particularly in the event of a cancellation or re-solicitation. Proposal materials become public information only after a contract is awarded.

3.0 - Overview

The Department of Planning and Redevelopment at the City of Pawtucket is requesting proposals from qualified firms (Consultants) to undertake the development of the City of Pawtucket's FY 2015-2020 Five-Year Consolidated Plan and FY 15 Year One Annual Action Plan. Both plans must be submitted to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) no later than May 15, 2015, after a 30-day public review and comment period. The Consolidated Plan (ConPlan) and Annual Action Plan (Annual Plan) shall encompass the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Home Investment Partnership (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) and fulfill HUD regulatory requirements regarding the receipt and potential receipt of HUD funds. The proposer must use the HUD e-Con Planning suite. The fixed-fee for this RFP is \$25,000.

The Consolidated Plan combines the planning and application requirements of certain Federal statutes and includes a Needs Assessment and Market Analysis outlining levels of relative need in the areas of affordable housing, homelessness, special needs, and community development. The consultant will be expected to gather the information through a number of methods, including consultation with City administration, local agencies, public outreach, a review of demographic and economic data sets, and a housing market analysis. The Needs Assessment portion forms the basis of the Strategic Plan that will detail how the City of Pawtucket will address its priority needs.

The period of this Consolidated Plan is July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. The Consolidated Plan must meet all requirements of the Federal regulations (see "Scope of Work") and must follow the HUD guidance for the e-Con Planning Suite.

The period of the Annual Plan is July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. The Annual Plan must meet all requirements of the Federal regulations (see "Scope of Work") and must follow the HUD guidance for the e-Con Planning Suite.

This is a firm deadline project, which will commence between November 28 and December 15, 2014.

- A minimum of one Public Hearing and up to four community meetings shall be held prior to completion of the Needs Assessment.
- A Needs Assessment identifying 1) Non-Housing Community Development Priorities and Strategies; 2) Anti-Poverty Strategies; and 3) Housing Needs, Priorities and Strategies shall be completed by March 3, 2015. This document shall form the basis of the City's Year One Annual Action Plan's Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA).
- The draft ConPlan and Annual Plan containing all required elements and produced through the e-Con Planning Suite, shall be completed for a 30-day public comment period no later than April 15, 2015.
- The ConPlan and Annual Plan for submission to HUD must be completed no later than May 15, 2015.

BACKGROUND

Each year the City of Pawtucket receives approximately \$1.8 million in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), \$400,000 in HOME Investment Partnership and \$150,000 in Emergency Solution Grant Funding.

Implementation of the City's Con Plan and Annual Plan is primarily carried out by the DPR. The DPR is responsible for managing the ConPlan and Annual Plan effort and ensuring that the plan is completed, as required.

Effective in 1995, HUD required all entitlement communities to begin submitting a ConPlan at least every five years. The plan includes requirements such as a housing and homeless needs assessment; a housing market analysis; a strategic plan; and an annual plan. ConPlan requirements are detailed specifically in 24 CFR 91, as amended, and can be found at the following website: https://www.onecpd.info/resources/documents/24CFRPart91_11.21.11.pdf

In May 2012, HUD introduced the eCon Planning Suite with tools designed to assist with the needs analysis and strategic decision making required for the ConPlan and Annual Plan. The selected consultant will be required to use HUD's ConPlan template located in the Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) to format the 2015-2020 ConPlan and FY 2015 Annual Action Plan. Information on the ConPlan template and a Desk Guide for Using IDIS to Prepare the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan can be found at the following website: http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program offices/comm planning/about/conplan/cp idis. To facilitate the inputting of data into IDIS by Central Grants, the selected consultant will be required to complete the template and forward a hard copy and electronic version to Central Grants.

4.0 - Scope of Work

The consultant will be responsible for preparing all sections of the documents in the IDIS template (including required narrative, applicable tables and maps). In developing the ConPlan, the selected consultant must consider HUD's performance measurement system in developing the five year strategy. In addition to performance measurements, the selected consultant must incorporate into the ConPlan the following statutory objectives of the CDBG, HOME, and ESG programs: creating suitable living environments; providing decent, affordable housing; and creating economic opportunities.

I. PROJECT APPROACH

The selected consultant will lead the Consolidated Planning effort and may be assisted by City staff from multiple departments for the timely completion of the Plan. The consultant will have overall responsibility for the project. Accordingly, the consultant must be knowledgeable of the HUD ConPlan requirements and eCon Planning Suite and must have demonstrated capacity to perform the tasks necessary to complete the project. The consultant, with City oversight and review, will be primarily responsible for work related to project management, preparation of the

required documents, citizen participation, and drafting of the ConPlan and Annual Action Plans.

City staff (and local community organizations) may be available to provide assistance for work related to citizen participation, data collection, mapping and analysis. However, it should be understood that the City has limited staff availability to support the project and will rely on the personnel, experience, and expertise of the consultant to ensure all necessary components of the process and plan are completed in a timely manner.

II. DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES

The following items focus on specific portions of the Consolidated Plan. Proposals submitted for consideration should describe in detail any additional data, resources, analysis, consultants, etc., recommended for inclusion in the planning effort. In using the HUD's eCon Planning suite format in preparing the plans, some information and data will be prepopulated or otherwise be provided within the format. Other data will need to be acquired and developed in order to satisfy HUD's regulatory requirements. An overview of the key components is as follows:

A. Executive Summary

The consultant will be responsible for preparing an Executive Summary. The Executive Summary should include a brief summary of the citizen participation process, community profile, housing and community development needs, goals, and strategies.

B. Consultation / Coordination

DPR will be available to assist the consultant in soliciting required input from other public agencies and jurisdictions (e.g., Housing Authority of the City of Pawtucket, Housing & Property Management, Health Department, Social Service Agencies, etc.). A portion of the information may be obtained in the form of needs assessments and/or planning documents (e.g., Continuum of Care Plan, Public Housing Plans, Community Surveys, etc.). The consultant will be required to obtain any additional data needed and will be responsible for the consultation and coordination process as well as analyzing, summarizing, and incorporating the information obtained into the Consolidated Plan.

C. <u>Institutional Structure</u>

The DPR staff will work with the consultant to summarize the institutional structure through which the Consolidated Plan will be implemented, including private industry, non-profit organizations, and public institutions. The consultant will assist the DPR staff in identifying gaps in the existing system. The consultant will be responsible for summarizing and incorporating the information obtained into the Consolidated Plan as required by HUD regulations.

D. Homeless Needs, Priorities and Strategies

Information on the homeless needs, facilities, and services is available through the DPR and the State of Rhode Island Consolidated Homeless Fund and other relative agencies. The consultant will be required to review these documents and incorporate the information and strategies into the Consolidated Plan as appropriate. Additional consultations with the various Health & Human Service, Social Service, Mental Health, and other agencies may be required.

E. <u>Housing Needs, Priorities and Strategies</u>

The housing market analysis must reflect the current housing conditions, including housing pricing, rents, vacancies, and construction costs relevant to the City of Pawtucket. The consultant will be required to work in conjunction with the DPR to obtain and analyze housing market data and prepare an updated housing market analysis. This discussion must incorporate affordable housing issues and needs for various income groups. The results of the analysis must be considered in view of the housing strategies and development of new or revised strategies and objectives for the Consolidated Plan.

F. Public Housing Needs / Strategies

HUD regulations require the inclusion of public housing needs and strategies in the Consolidated Plan. The consultant will be required to work with the Housing Authority of the City of Pawtucket to ensure that the information from the Public Housing Plan is incorporated into the respective Consolidated Plan.

G. Lead Based Paint

Information on the age of housing (available from the U.S. census) is generally used to identify potential lead based paint problems. Additional information concerning reported cases of children with elevated blood levels indicating lead based paint poisoning is available from the Rhode Island Department of Public Health. The consultant will be responsible for analyzing from Rhode Island Department of Public Health and incorporating into the Consolidated Plan as appropriate.

H. Analysis of Impediments

Impediments identified in the current plan include discrimination in the housing market, housing affordability, zoning, planning and land use issues and lending practices. The consultant will work with the DPR Staff and the Housing Authority of the City of Pawtucket to review current impediments and update this information to include any new impediments and revise strategies to alleviate the barriers. The consultant will be responsible for summarizing and incorporating the information obtained into the Consolidated Plan as required by HUD regulations. The Fair Housing Act specifies that HUD, and by extension, CDBG funding recipients, must administer programs and activities in a manner that affirmatively further fair housing, which means more than ensuring non-discrimination.

I. Fair Housing

The consultant will work with the DPR staff and Housing Authority of the City of Pawtucket to determine the impediments to fair housing. The consultant will be required to incorporate this information along with the strategies to mitigate these impediments into the Consolidated Plan.

J. Anti-Poverty Strategy

The consultant will work with the DPR Staff and other agencies to refine the current anti-poverty strategy.

K. Non-Housing Community Development Strategies

The consultant will work with DPR staff to identify and refine priority non-housing community development needs, objectives and strategies. The non-housing community development strategies will apply primarily to Consolidated Plan/Annual Action Plan for the City of Pawtucket.

III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

As a part of the response to this RFP, and in accordance with 21 CFR Part 91.100 and 91.105, the City is requiring that potential consultants identify and execute a process to encourage significant participation from City residents, including the following:

- low- and moderate-income persons, particularly those living in blighted areas and in areas where CDBG funds are proposed to be used, and by residents of predominantly low-and moderate- income neighborhoods;
- minorities and non-English speaking persons and persons with disabilities; and
- Residents of public and assisted housing developments.

In addition to the above, the consultant will also be required to engage local and regional institutions and other organizations in the process of developing and implementing the ConPlan. The City is encouraging respondents to this proposal to identify traditional and nontraditional public involvement techniques.

Publication of the Plan

The City will publish and make public all versions of the Consolidated Plan and subsequent Annual Action Plans and Notices of Funding Availability. The publication of these documents will afford the opportunity to provide comment regarding content. The City and Central Grants will place copies of the draft and final versions of these documents at the following locations:

- The Pawtucket Public Library
- The City of Pawtucket Clerk's Office
- The administrative offices of the Housing Authority of the City of Pawtucket

In addition these documents will be made available to other area funders, and on the City's website: www.pawtucketri.com The City will also make free copies of the *Plan* and subsequent Annual Action Plans available to those groups or individuals that request the document.

A summary of the proposed Consolidated Plan, subsequent Annual Action Plans including a listing of sites where the document is available will be published in a periodical of general circulation (*The Pawtucket Times*) and community newspapers. This summary will contain a description of the contents and purpose of the Consolidated Plan. The City will place a final copy of the document, as adopted or amended by the Common Council and in the format to be submitted to HUD, at the previously mentioned sites.

Public Hearing

As a general rule DPR, as administrator of the local CDBG Program, conducts at least one public hearing during the drafting and development of the Consolidated Plan, subsequent Annual Action Plans and Notice of Funding Availability. At a minimum, a published Notice of Public Hearing will appear in the legal notices sections of the *Pawtucket Times* prior to each hearing and a thirty (30) day comment period is scheduled in order to accept comments regarding the near complete version of the draft document. The Department of Planning anticipates an update of the public hearing process in the new Consolidated Plan.

Access to Records

DPR will provide residents, social service organizations and stakeholders with reasonable and timely access to information and records relating to the City's use of assistance under the programs covered by this part during the preceding five (5) years.

IV. SCOPE OF WORK:

The specific requirements for the Consolidated Plan can be found in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 24, Section 91, et. seq. (24 CFR 91) and guidance for preparing a Consolidated Plan submission can be found at: http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/about/conplan/cp_idis

Specific tasks shall include, at a minimum:

A. <u>Organizational</u>

- 1. Meet with the Department of Planning and relevant stakeholders
- 2. Prepare a timeline for project milestones including proposed community and stakeholder meetings and stakeholder interviews. This timeline will be made available to the public to explain the process.

B. <u>Needs Assessment</u>

The Consultant shall gather factual and broad community input through citizen and stakeholder participation and data collection including:

- Review of available data, reports and documents (2010-15 Consolidated Plan, Annual Plan and CAPER reports can be found at www.pawtucketri.com/departments/planning
- 2. Review of current HUD Consolidated Plan regulations and guidance, particularly changes made since 2010.
- 3. Presentations at community and public meetings and moderating discussions (including preparing, copying and distributing bilingual handouts in Spanish) to gather community input on the community needs. This will include:
 - a. An initial evening public meeting to explain the Consolidated Plan process and present the timeline;
 - b. Up to four weekday evening or Saturday daytime neighborhood meetings;
 - c. Up to six on-site focus group meetings to meet with program clients at community agencies during their regularly scheduled program times; and
 - d. Interviews and/or daytime focus group meetings with community stakeholders, to be determined with DPR staff and consultant but at a minimum should include representatives from City departments, the Mayor's office, City Council representatives, business community, housing agencies, social service agencies, state agencies, regional agencies, CHDO representatives, corporate and community foundations and other organizations or individuals deemed appropriate.

- Prepare summary of comments, conduct analysis and assess data gathered and develop 5 year priority recommendations incorporating factual data and public input collected to support those recommendations.
- 5. Using data and information collected to develop written Needs Assessment and Market Analysis in format required by HUD.
- 6. Develop maps of key data elements such as income, housing, and racial characteristics.
- 7. Adjust Needs Assessment and Market Analysis from the HUD Econ Planning submission document to one suitable for public distribution and comment.

C. Strategic Assessment

- 1. Through stakeholder meeting and interviews with Administration and DPR staff, state and local agencies and corporate and community foundations, identify Funding Opportunity areas the City could consider investing CDBG funds in. Funding Opportunity areas are program capacities or partnerships that could be developed or enhanced by City departments and/or community agencies to more effectively compete for federal, state and private foundation grant funding opportunities.
- 2. Through stakeholder meetings and interviews determine what strategies DPR staff should fund or pursue to assist CDBG and ESG funded community agencies to more effectively deliver services to Pawtucket residents. Strategies could include: capacity building assistance to agencies, agencies adopting stronger performance measures, or greater transparency of agency program outcomes, etc.

D. Preparation of 5 Year Consolidated Plan & Year One Annual Action Plan

- 1. Develop a draft Consolidated Plan using the HUD eCon Planning tool that includes 5- year funding goals, priorities and strategies, along with proposed accomplishments and performance measurements.
- 2. Develop a draft City Fiscal Year One 2015 Annual Action Plan that includes proposed activities, proposed accomplishments and performance measurements using the IDIS/eCon Planning Suite.
- 3. Provide internal copies of plan sections to DPR staff for review and comment before public draft of plan is finalized.
- 4. The draft plan for the public must be in a Word Document that is easily readable by the public. It is our understanding the eCon Planning Suite version, while meeting the HUD submission requirements, may not be the best document to display or print for public review.

V. PROJECT/PRODUCT DELIVERABLES

The consultant is expected to prepare a draft version of the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan for the DPR using the eCon Planning Suite format. Working in conjunction with DPR staff, the consultant will be required to download both draft plans and produce a hard copy of each that will be available for review by the general public as part of a mandatory 30-day comment period. At the conclusion of the

comment period, the consultant shall prepare a final version of the plans that is ready for the City's official submission to HUD. At a minimum, the Consolidated Plans/Action Plans must contain all the information requested in this RFP and must meet the requirements set forth by HUD. It should also be noted that a final negotiated payment for the work associated with this project will be held until such time as HUD approves all of the plans.

The consultant will be responsible for preparing in final form and submitting electronically to HUD all forms and tables in the eCon Planning Suite instructions after City review and authorization. The Consultant will be responsible for making any revisions required by HUD after submission. The consultant will be responsible for all trouble shooting with HUD relative to using the IDIS/eCon Planning Suite software.

The Consultant is responsible for submitting 3 color copies each of the approved Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan in 3-ring binders and one (1) unbound and reproducible master hard copy of each document, including maps, charts, graphs, supporting tables, no later than May 5, 2015. The Consultant is also responsible for finalizing the digital submission of the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan to HUD and submission by the May 15, 2015 deadline.

The Consultant is also responsible for submitting one (1) copy of the final Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan as a PDF.

The Consultant will submit a reproducible copy of all maps, graphics, slide presentations, surveys, and photographs to Central Grants. Presentation materials, such as display boards, slides, videos, etc., shall be submitted to Central Grants.

All deliverables will become property of the City of Pawtucket.

5.0 - Insurance

The vendor shall maintain and keep in force such comprehensive general liability insurance as shall protect them from claims which may arise from operations under any contract entered into with the City of Pawtucket, whether such operations be by themselves or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by them.

The amounts of insurance shall be not less than \$1,000,000.00 combined single limit for any one occurrence covering both bodily injury and property damage, including accidental death.

The City of Pawtucket and National Grid shall be named as additional insured on the vendor's General Liability Policy.

The vendor shall maintain and keep in force such Workers' compensation insurance limits as required by the statutes of the State of Rhode Island, and Employer's Liability with limits no less than \$500,000.

6.0 - Acknowledgement of Risk & Hold Harmless Agreement

In addition to the indemnity provisions in the City of Pawtucket's Terms and Conditions of Purchase and to the fullest extent permitted by law, the selected vendor, its officers, agents, servants, employees, parents, subsidiaries, partners, officers, directors, attorneys, insurers, and/or affiliates (Releasors) agree to release, waive, discharge and covenant not to sue the City of Pawtucket, its officers, agents, servants or employees

(Releasees) from any and all liability, claims, cross-claims, rights in law or in equity, agreements, promises demands, actions and causes of action whatsoever arising out of or related to any loss, damage, expenses (including without limitation, all legal fees, expenses, interest and penalties) or injury (including death), of any type, kind or nature whatsoever, whether based in contract, tort, warranty, or other legal, statutory, or equitable theory of recovery, which relate to or arise out of the Releasors use of or presence in and/or on City of Pawtucket property. The Releasors agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Releasees from (a) any and all claims, loss, liability, damages or costs by any person, firm, corporation or other entity claiming by, through or under Releasors in any capacity whatsoever, including all subrogation claims and/or claims for reimbursement, including any court costs and attorneys fees, that may incur due to Releasors use of or presence in and on City of Pawtucket property; and (b) any and all legal actions, including third-party actions, cross-actions, and/or claims for contribution and/or indemnity with respect to any claims by any other persons, entities, parties, which relate to or arise out of Releasors use of or presence in and on City of Pawtucket property.

The Releasors acknowledge the risks that may be involved and hazards connected with use of or presence in and on City of Pawtucket property but elect to provide services under any contract with the City of Pawtucket with full knowledge of such risks. Releasors also acknowledge that any loss, damage, and/or injury sustained by Releasors is not covered by Releasees insurance. Releasors agree to become fully aware of any safety risks involved with the performance of services under any contract with the City of Pawtucket and any safety precautions that need to be followed and agree to take all such precautions.

The duty to indemnify and/or hold harmless the City of Pawtucket shall not be limited by the insurance required under the City of Pawtucket Terms and Conditions of Purchase.

7.0 - Additional Insurance Requirements

In addition to the insurance provisions in the City of Pawtucket Terms and Conditions of Purchase, the liability insurance coverage, except Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions or Workers' Compensation insurance required for performance of a contract with the City of Pawtucket shall include the City of Pawtucket, its divisions, officers and employees as Additional Insureds but only with respect to the selected vendor's activities under the contract. The insurance required through a policy or endorsement shall include:

- A. a Waiver of Subrogation waiving any right to recovery the insurance company may have against the City of Pawtucket; and
- B. a provision that the selected vendor's insurance coverage shall be primary with respect to any insurance, self insurance or self retention maintained by the City of Pawtucket and that any insurance, self insurance or self retention maintained by the City of Pawtucket shall be in excess of the selected vendor's insurance and shall not contribute.

There shall be no cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits or non-renewal without thirty (30) days written notice from the selected vendor or its insurer(s) to the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent. Any failure to comply with the reporting provision of this clause shall be grounds for immediate termination of the contract with the City of Pawtucket.

Insurance coverage required under the contract shall be obtained from insurance companies acceptable to the City of Pawtucket. The selected vendor shall pay for all deductibles, self insured retentions and/or self insurance included hereunder.

The City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent reserves the right to consider and accept alternative forms and plans of insurance or to require additional or more extensive coverage for any individual requirement.

8.0 - Proposal Content and Organization

Pricing must include all costs as specified in this solicitation. Pricing for this proposal must be indicated on the Bid Form in Section 12.0 and must be submitted in a separate, sealed envelope marked with the words "Pricing Proposal". Only one pricing proposal needs to be submitted.

All Bid Forms must be signed.

Vendors must include on the Bid Form a list of at least four (4) references with whom they have contracted to do similar work by including the company name, telephone number, contact person, and number of years they have served this customer. Preferably, references should be municipalities which are of approximate size as the City of Pawtucket, and a website address should be included if available.

Respondents must also include an overview of their company's experience including, but not limited to, the number of years the company has been providing these services, the size of the company (including the number of employees and locations), a description of work undertaken that is similar to what is being requested in this RFP, and, if applicable, certifications that show a knowledge of equipment that would be serviced or provided under this contract.

If any subcontractors are to be used in the performance of any work contracted for under this RFP, please list their name(s), contractor license #, address and phone number, and specific description of the subcontract work to be performed.

Four (4) copies of your proposal, one (1) original and three (3) copies, must be submitted at the time of submission. Proposals must be in the following format:

Bid Form

Company overview

Length of time your firm has been in business

Length of time at current address

All licensing (List types and business license number(s)), certification and permits as required in the Scope of Work

Please state any and all additions, deletions, and exceptions, if any, that you are taking to any portion of this proposal. If not addressed specifically, the City of Pawtucket assumes that the vendor will adhere to all terms and conditions listed in this RFP.

Submission of a proposal is acknowledgement and acceptance of the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Rules and Regulations and General Terms and Conditions of Purchase.

9.0 - Evaluation Criteria

The evaluation of proposals will be conducted in a time frame convenient to the City.

The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to award on the basis of cost alone, accept or reject any or all proposals, and to otherwise act in its best interest including, but not limited to, directly negotiating with any Supplier who submits a proposal in response to this RFP and to award a contract based upon the results of those negotiations alone. Further, the City reserves the right to waive irregularities it may deem minor in its consideration of proposals.

Proposals found to be technically or substantially non-responsive at any point in the evaluation process will be rejected and not considered further. The City of Pawtucket may elect to require presentations(s) by vendors in consideration for award.

Proposals will be evaluated as follows:

- The first phase is an initial review to determine if the proposal, as submitted, is complete. To be complete, a proposal must meet all the requirements of this RFP.
- 2. The second phase is an in-depth analysis and review based on criteria below and their associated weights.

Evaluation Criteria	Importance			
Qualifications	30%			
References	35%			
Experience with Similar Projects	35%			

In the event that the City requires further information and/or a demonstration of any equipment or process offered in any proposal, all vendors asked for same will do so at no cost to the City.

10.0 - Miscellaneous

Vendors shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances and regulations and shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City of Pawtucket against any claims arising from the violation of any such laws, ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to challenges as to the legality of any and all vendor installations.

The City is exempt from the payment of the Rhode Island State Sales Tax under the 1956 General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, 44-18-30, Paragraph 1, as amended. Further, the City is also exempt from the payment of any excise or federal transportation taxes. The proposal prices submitted must be exclusive of same, and will be so construed.

The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to cancel an agreement with the Vendor with thirty (30) days written notice and to award the contract to the next highest evaluated bidder.

The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to renegotiate the terms of this contract with the Vendor for subsequent years provided the Vendor agrees to the contract terms for the renewal period.

The payment and performance of any obligations under this contract for years beyond the first fiscal year are subject to the availability of funds.

The City reserves the right to pay the selected Vendor via credit card at its sole discretion.

11.0 – Bid Form

14-076 - Five Year Consolidated Plan / Ann	ual Action Plan
Date:	
Submitted By:	
(Include Name, Address and Telephone No.)	
Name and remittance address that will	Physical address of business:
appear on invoices:	
General Information	
Is your firm a sole proprietorship doing busNo	siness under a different name?Yes
If yes, please indicate sole proprietorship, business under.	a name, and the name you are doing
Is your firm incorporated?Yes No	
Will any of the work spelled out in this bid be of	outsourced?Yes No
If so, please explain below:	
Have you or your firm been subject to suspen	nsion, debarment or criminal conviction by
the City of Pawtucket, the State of Rhode Isla	
Yes: No:	

with your firm for cause? Yes: No:
Has your firm ever withdrawn from a contract with the City of Pawtucket and/or the State of Rhode Island during its performance? Yes: No:
Have you or your firm been involved in litigation against the City of Pawtucket and/or the State of Rhode Island. Yes: No:
If you answered yes to any of the foregoing, please explain the circumstances below. If you or your firm has been involved in litigation against the City of Pawtucket and/or the State of Rhode Island, please include the case caption, case number and status. (If more space is needed, please attach separate sheet and submit with the bid.)
Is your company bonded? Yes No Please describe the nature and extent of all insurance coverage:
<u>Addenda</u>
The following Addenda have been received. The noted modifications to the Bidding Documents have been considered and all costs are included in the Bid Sum.
Addendum #1, Dated:
Addendum #2, Dated:
Addendum #3, Dated:

References

Please list at least four (4) companies' with whom you have contracted to provide similar services. Preferably, references should be municipalities which are of approximate size as the City of Pawtucket, and a website address should be included if available.

Reference #1		
Company Name:		
Contact Person:	Telephone #:	
Contract Dates:	To	
Website Address:		
Reference # 2		
Company Name:		
Contact Person:	Telephone #:	
Contract Dates:	To	
Website Address:		
Reference # 3		
Company Name:		
Contact Person:	Telephone #:	
Contract Dates:	To	
Website Address:		
Reference # 4		
Company Name:		
Contact Person:	Telephone #:	
Contract Dates:	To	
Website Address:		

Pricing Proposal

Having examined RFP # 14-076, we propose to enter into a contract to perform services per the bid specifications for the costs listed below:

The lump sum cost is:

\$,								
·		1				N	lumer	ic				
						1	Vritte	n				
he ho	urly ra	ate fo	r add	itiona	ıl ser	vices	is:					
				,							7	
\$,				,				
		•				Ν	lumer	ic		•		
							Writte	<u> </u>				
						,	vviille	11				
Bid	Form	Sign	ature									
	(Bid	der Na	ame -	- Plea	se Pr	int)		_				
By:								_				
		(Signa	iture)								
itle:												
<u></u>								_				
**** BI	D FOF	RM M	UST E	BE SI	GNEL	D ****	*					

ANTI-KICKBACK ACKNOWLEDGMENT

ALL BIDDERS/OFFERORS MUST ATTEST TO THE FOLLOWING:

The vendor acknowledges, under the pains and penalties of perjury, that he/she has not been offered, paid, or solicited for any contribution or compensation, nor has he/she been granted a gift, gratuity, or other consideration, either directly or indirectly by any officer, employee or member of the governing body of the City of Pawtucket who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with either the award or execution of the project to which this contract pertains.

Further, the vendor acknowledges, under the pains and penalties of perjury, that he/she has not offered, paid, or solicited by way of any contribution or compensation, nor has he/she granted a gift, gratuity or other consideration either directly or indirectly to any officer, employee, or member of the governing body of the City of Pawtucket who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with either the award or execution of the project to which this project or contract pertains.

SIGNATURE OF OFFEROR	DATE
TITLE	
IIILE	
COMPANY	
Title of RFP:	
ORIGINAL: AUGUST/2001	REVISED: APRIL/2006

Appendix B

CITY OF PAWTUCKET GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PURCHASE

Preamble

The City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Office may, from time to time, make amendments to the General Terms and Conditions when the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent determines that such amendments are in the best interest of the City of Pawtucket. Amendments shall be made available for public inspection at the Purchasing Office located in Pawtucket City Hall but shall not require formal public notice and hearing. Copies of the Terms and Conditions shall be provided to any individual or firm requesting them.

CITY OF PAWTUCKET'S PURCHASING OFFICE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF PURCHASE

All City of Pawtucket purchase orders, contracts, solicitations, delivery orders and service requests shall incorporate and be subject to the provisions of Rhode Island General Laws 8-15-4 and the City of Pawtucket purchasing rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, all other applicable provisions of the Rhode Island General Laws, the Pawtucket City Charter, specific requirements described in the Request or Contract, and the following General Conditions of Purchase:

1. GENERAL

All purchase orders, contracts, solicitations, delivery orders, and service requests are for specified goods and services, in accordance with express terms and conditions of purchase, as defined herein. For the purposes of this document, the terms "bidder" and "contractor" refer to any individual, firm, corporation, or other entity presenting a proposal indicating a desire to enter into contracts with the City of Pawtucket, or with whom a contract is executed by the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent, and the term "contractor" shall have the same meaning as "vendor".

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The City of Pawtucket's Purchase Order, or other City of Pawtucket contract endorsed by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office, shall constitute the entire and exclusive agreement between the City of Pawtucket and any contractor receiving an award. In the event any conflict between the bidder's standard terms of sale, these conditions or more specific provisions contained in the solicitation shall govern.

All communication between the City of Pawtucket and any contractor pertaining to any award or contract shall be accomplished in writing.

- a. Each proposal will be received with the understanding that the acceptance, in writing, by contract or Purchase Order by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent of the offer to do work or to furnish any or all the materials, equipment, supplies or services described therein shall constitute a contract between the bidder and the City of Pawtucket. This shall bind the bidder on his part to furnish and deliver at the prices and in accordance with the conditions of said accepted proposal and detailed specifications and the City of Pawtucket on its part to order from such contractor (except in case of emergency) and to pay for at the agreed prices, all materials, equipment, supplies or services specified and delivered. A contract shall be deemed executory only to the extent of funds available for payment of the amounts shown on Purchase Orders issued by the City of Pawtucket to the contractors.
- b. No alterations or variations of the terms of the contract shall be valid or binding upon the City of Pawtucket unless submitted in writing and accepted by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent. All orders and changes thereof must emanate from the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office: no oral agreement or arrangement made by a contractor with a department or employee will be considered to be binding on the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent, and may be disregarded.
- c. Contracts will remain in force for the contract period specified or until all articles or services ordered before date of termination shall have been satisfactorily delivered or rendered and accepted and thereafter until all terms and conditions have been met, unless:

- 1. terminated prior to expiration date by satisfactory delivery against orders of entire quantities, or
- 2. extended upon written authorization of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent and accepted by the contractor, to permit ordering of the unordered balances or additional quantities at the contract price and in accordance with the contract terms, or
- canceled by the City of Pawtucket in accordance with other provisions stated herein.
 - d. It is mutually understood and agreed that the contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of this contract or his right, title or interest therein, or his power to execute such contract, to any other person, company or corporation, without the previous consent, in writing, of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent.
 - e. If, subsequent to the submission of an offer or issuance of a purchase order or execution of a contract, the bidder or contractor shall merge with or be acquired by another entity, the contract may be terminated, except as a corporate resolution prepared by the contractor and the new entity ratifying acceptance of the original bid or contract terms, condition, and pricing is submitted to the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office, and expressly accepted.
 - f. The contractor or bidder further warrants by submission of an offer or acceptance of a purchase order or other contract that he has no knowledge at the time of such action of any outstanding and delinquent or otherwise unsettled debt owed by him to the City of Pawtucket, and agrees that later discovery by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent that this warranty was given in spite of such knowledge, except where the matter is pending in hearing or from any appeal therefrom, shall form reasonable grounds for termination of the contract.

3. SUBCONTRACTS

No subcontracts or collateral agreements shall be permitted, except with the City of Pawtucket's express written consent. Upon request, contractors must submit to the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office a list of all subcontractors to be employed in the performance of any Purchase Order or other contract arising from this Request.

4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

The contractor or bidder warrants, by submission of an offer or acceptance of a purchase order or other contract, that he is not an employee, agent, or servant of the City of Pawtucket, and that he is fully qualified and capable in all material regards to provide the specified goods and services. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any contractual relationship or obligation between the City of Pawtucket and any sub-bidder, subcontractor, supplier, or employee of the contractor or offeror.

COSTS OF PREPARATION

All costs associated with the preparation, development, or submission of bids or other offers will be borne by the offeror. The City of Pawtucket will not reimburse any offeror for such costs.

6. SPECIFIED QUANTITY REQUIREMENT

Except where expressly specified to the contrary, all solicitations and contracts are predicated on a specified quantity of goods or services, or for a specified level of funding.

- a. The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to modify the quantity, scope of service, date of delivery or completion, or funding of any contract, with no penalty or charge, by written notice to the contractor, except where alternate terms have been expressly made a part of the contract.
- b. The City of Pawtucket shall not accept quantities in excess of the specified quantity except where the item is normally sold by weight (where sold by weight, the City of Pawtucket will not accept quantities greater than ten per cent [10%] of the specified quantity), or where the Request or Contract provides for awards for other than exact quantities.

c. Purchase Orders or other contracts may be increased in quantity or extended in term without subsequent solicit with the mutual consent of the contractor and the City of Pawtucket, where determined by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent to be in the City of Pawtucket's best interest.

7. TERM AND RENEWAL

Where offers have been requested or contracts awarded for terms exceeding periods of twelve (12) months, it is mutually understood and agreed that the City of Pawtucket's commitment is limited to a base term not to exceed twelve (12) months, subject to renewal annually at the City of Pawtucket's sole option for successive terms as otherwise described, except where expressly specified to the contrary. Purchase orders appearing to commit to obligations of funding or terms of performance may be executed for administrative convenience, but are otherwise subject to this provision, and in such cases the City of Pawtucket's renewal shall be deemed to be automatic, conditional on the continued availability of appropriated funds for the purpose, except as written notice of the City of Pawtucket's intent not to renew is served.

8. DELIVERY/COMPLETION

Delivery must be made as ordered and/or projects completed in accordance with the proposal. If delivery qualifications do not appear on the bidder's proposal, it will be interpreted to mean that goods are in stock and that shipment will be made within seven (7) calendar days. If the project completion date is not specified in the proposal, the date shall be determined by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent. The decision of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent, as to reasonable compliance with the delivery terms, and date of completion shall be final. Burden of proof of delay in receipt of order shall rest with the contractor. No delivery charges shall be added to invoices except when authorized on the Purchase Order.

9. FOREIGN CORPORATIONS

In accordance with Title 7 Chapter 1.1 ("Business Corporations") of the General Laws of Rhode Island, no foreign corporation shall have the right to transact business in this state until it shall have procured a certificate of authority so to do from the Secretary of State.

PRICING

All pricing offered or extended to the City of Pawtucket is considered to be firm and fixed unless expressly provided for to the contrary. All prices shall be quoted F.O.B. Destination with freight costs included in the unit cost to be paid by the City of Pawtucket, except, where the Request or Contract permits, offers reflecting F.O.B. Shipping Point will be considered, and freight costs may then be prepaid and added to the invoice.

11. COLLUSION

Bidder or contractor warrants that he has not, directly or indirectly, entered into any agree participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any action in restraint of full competitive bidding. In special circumstances, an executed affidavit will be required as a part of the bid.

12. PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES AND GRATUITIES

Bidder or contractor warrants that he has not paid, and agrees not to pay, any bonus, commission, fee, or gratuity to any employee or official of the City of Pawtucket for the purpose of obtaining any contract or award issued by the City of Pawtucket. Bidder or contractor further warrants that no commission or other payment has been or will be received from or paid to any third party contingent on the award of any contract by the City of Pawtucket, except as shall have been expressly communicated to the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent in writing prior to acceptance of the contract or award in question. Subsequent discovery by the City of Pawtucket of non-compliance with these provisions shall constitute sufficient cause for immediate termination of all outstanding contracts and suspension or debarment of the bidder(s) or contractor(s) involved.

13. AWARDS

Awards will be made with reasonable promptness and by written notice to the successful bidder (only); bids are considered to be irrevocable for a period of ninety (90) days following the bid opening unless expressly provided for to the contrary in the Request, and may not be withdrawn during this period without the express permission of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent.

- a. Awards shall be made to the bidder(s) whose offer(s) constitutes the lowest responsive price offer (or lowest responsive price offer on an evaluated basis) for the item(s) in question or for the Request as a whole, at the option of the City of Pawtucket. The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to determine those offers which are responsive to the Request, or which otherwise serve its best interests.
- b. The City of Pawtucket reserves the right, before making award, to initiate investigations as to whether or not the materials, equipment, supplies, qualifications or facilities offered by the bidder meet the requirements set forth in the proposal and specification, and are ample and sufficient to insure the proper performance of the contract in the event of award. If upon such examination it is found that the conditions of the proposal are not complied with or that articles or equipment proposed to be furnished do not meet the requirements called for, or that the qualifications or facilities are not satisfactory, the City of Pawtucket may reject such a bid. It is distinctly understood, however, that nothing in the foregoing shall mean or imply that it is obligatory upon the City of Pawtucket to make any examinations before awarding a contract; and it is further understood that if such examination is made, it in no way relieves the contractor from fulfilling all requirements and conditions of the contract.
- c. Qualified or conditional offers which impose limitations of the bidder's liability or modify the requirements of the bid, offers for alternate specifications, or which are made subject to different terms and conditions than those specified by the City of Pawtucket may, at the option of the City of Pawtucket, be
 - 1. Rejected as being non-responsive, or
 - 2. Set aside in favor of the City of Pawtucket's terms and conditions (with the consent of the bidder), or
 - 3. Accepted, where the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent determines that such acceptance best serves the interests of the City of Pawtucket.

Acceptance or rejection of alternate or counter-offers by the City of Pawtucket shall not constitute a precedent which shall be considered to be binding on successive solicitations or procurements.

- d. Bids submitted in pencil, or which do not bear an original signature, in ink, by an owner or authorized agent thereof, will not be accepted.
- e. Bids must be extended in the unit of measure specified in the Request. In the event of any discrepancy between unit prices and their extensions, the unit price will govern.
- f. The City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent reserves the right to determine the responsibility of any bidder for a particular procurement.
- g. The City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent reserves the right to reject any and all bids in whole or in part, to waive technical defects, irregularities, and omissions, and to give consideration to past performance of the offerors where, in his judgment the best interests of the City of Pawtucket will be served by so doing.
- h. The City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent reserves the right to make awards by items, group of items or on the total low bid for all the items specified as indicated in the detailed specification, unless the bidder specifically indicates otherwise in his bid.
- i. Preference may be given to bids on products raised or manufactured in the City of Pawtucket or State of Rhode Island, other things being equal.
- j. The impact of discounted payment terms shall not be considered in evaluating responses to any Request.
- k. The City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent reserves the right to act in the City of Pawtucket's best interests regarding awards caused by clerical errors by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office.

14. SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

The City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent may suspend or debar any vendor or potential bidder, for good cause shown:

a. A debarment or suspension against a part of a corporate entity constitutes debarment or suspension of all of its divisions and all other organizational elements, except where the action has been specifically limited in scope and application, and may include all known corporate affiliates of a contractor, when such offense or act occurred in connection with the affiliate's performance of duties for or on behalf of the contractor, or with the knowledge, approval, or acquiescence of the contractor or one or more of its principals or

- directors (or where the contractor otherwise participated in, knew of, or had reason to know of the acts).
- b. The fraudulent, criminal or other serious improper conduct of any officer, director, shareholder, partner, employee, or any other individual associated with a contractor may be imputed to the contractor when the conduct occurred in connection with the individual's performance of duties for or on behalf of the contractor, or with the contractor's knowledge, approval or acquiescence. The contractor's acceptance of benefits derived from the conduct shall be evidence of such knowledge, approval, or acquiescence.
- c. A vendor or contractor who knowingly engages as a subcontractor for a contract awarded by the City of Pawtucket to a vendor or contractor then under a ruling of suspension or debarment by the City of Pawtucket shall be subject to disallowance of cost, annulment or termination of award, issuance of a stop work order, or debarment or suspension, as may be judged to be appropriate by the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent.

15. PUBLIC RECORDS

Contractors and bidders are advised that certain documents, correspondence, and other submissions to the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Office may be voluntarily made public by the City of Pawtucket absent specific notice that portions of such submittals may contain confidential or proprietary information, such that public access to those items should be withheld.

PRODUCT EVALUATION

In all specifications, the words "or equal" are understood after each article when manufacturer's name or catalog are referenced. If bidding on items other than those specified, the bidder must, in every instance, give the trade designation of the article, manufacturer's name and detailed specifications of the item the bidder proposes to furnish; otherwise, the bid will be construed as submitted on the identical commodity described in the detailed specifications. The City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent reserves the right to determine whether or not the item submitted is the approved equal the detailed specifications.

- a. Any objections to specifications must be filed by a bidder, in writing, with the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent at least 96 hours before the time of bid opening to enable the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Office to properly investigate the objections.
- b. All standards are minimum standards except as otherwise provided for in the Request or Contract.
- c. Samples must be submitted to the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Office in accordance with the terms of the proposals and detailed specifications. Samples must be furnished free of charge and must be accompanied by descriptive memorandum invoices indicating whether or not the bidder desires their return and specifying the address to which they are to be returned (at the bidder's risk and expense), provided they have not been used or made useless by tests; and absent instructions, the samples shall be considered to be abandoned. Award samples may be held for comparison with deliveries.
- d. All samples submitted are subject to test by any laboratory the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent may designate.

17. PRODUCT ACCEPTANCE

All merchandise offered or otherwise provided shall be new, of prime manufacture, and of first quality unless otherwise specified by the City of Pawtucket. The City of Pawtucket reserves the right to reject all nonconforming goods, and to cause their return for credit or replacement, at the City of Pawtucket's option. Contract deliverables specified for procurements of services shall be construed to be work products, and subject to the provisions of this section.

- a. Failure by the City of Pawtucket to discover latent defect(s) or concealed damage or nonconformance shall not foreclose the City of Pawtucket's right to subsequently reject the goods in question.
- b. Formal or informal acceptance by the City of Pawtucket of non-conforming goods shall not constitute a precedent for successive receipts or procurements.
- c. Where the contractor fails to promptly cure the defect or replace the goods, the City of Pawtucket reserves the right to cancel the Purchase Order, contract with a different contractor, and to invoice the original contractor for any differential in price over the original contract price.

d. When materials, equipment or supplies are rejected, the same must be removed by the contractor from the premises of the City of Pawtucket within forty-eight (48) hours of notification. Rejected items left longer than two days will be regarded as abandoned and the City of Pawtucket shall have the right to dispose of them as its own property.

18. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

All product or service warranties normally offered by the contractor or bidder shall accrue to the City of Pawtucket's benefit, in addition to any special requirements which may be imposed by the City of Pawtucket. Every unit delivered must be guaranteed against faulty material and workmanship for a period of one year unless otherwise specified, and the City of Pawtucket may, in the event of failure, order its replacement, repair, or return for full credit, at its sole option.

19. PAYMENT

Unless otherwise provided for by the Request or Contract, payment shall not be made until delivery has been made, or services performed, in full, and accepted. Payment shall not be due prior to thirty (30) working days following the latest of completion, acceptance, or the rendering of a properly submitted invoice.

- a. Payment terms other than the foregoing may be rejected as being nonresponsive.
- b. No partial shipments, or partial completion will be accepted, unless provided for by the Request or Contract.
- c. Where a question of quality is involved, or failure to complete a project by the specified due date, payment in whole or part against which to charge back any adjustment required, shall be withheld at the direction of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent. In the event a cash discount is stipulated, the withholding of payments, as herein described, will not deprive the City of Pawtucket from taking such discount.
- d. Payments for used portion of inferior delivery or late delivery will be made by the City of Pawtucket on an adjusted price basis.
- e. Payments on contracts under architectural or engineering supervision must be accompanied by a Certificate of Payment and Statement of Account signed by the architect or engineer and submitted to the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office for approval.

20. THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS

The City of Pawtucket recognizes no assigned or collateral rights to any purchase agreement except as may be expressly provided for in the bid or contract documents, and will not accede to any request for third party or joint payment(s), except as provided for in specific orders by a court of competent jurisdiction, or by express written permission of the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent. Where an offer is contingent upon such payment(s), the offeror is obligated to serve affirmative notice in his bid submission.

21. SET-OFF AGAINST PAYMENTS

Payments due the contractor may be subject to reduction equal to the amount of unpaid and delinquent state taxes (or other just debt owed to the State), except where notice of delinquency has not been served or while the matter is pending in hearing or from any appeal therefrom.

22. CLAIMS

Any claim against a contractor may be deducted by the City of Pawtucket from any money due him in the same or other transactions. If no deduction is made in such fashion, the contractor shall pay the City of Pawtucket the amount of such claim on demand. Submission of a voucher and payment, thereof, by the City of Pawtucket shall not preclude the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent from demanding a price adjustment in any case when the commodity delivered is later found to deviate from the specifications and proposal.

a. The City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent may assess dollar damages against a vendor or contractor determined to be non-performing or otherwise in default of their contractual obligations equal to the cost of remedy incurred by the City of Pawtucket, and make payment of such damages a condition for consideration for any subsequent award. Failure by the vendor or contractor to pay such damages shall constitute just cause for disqualification and rejection, suspension, or debarment.

23. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDING

The Director of Finance shall provide certification as to the availability of funds to support the procurement for the current fiscal year ending June 30th only. Where delivery or service requirements extend beyond the end of the current fiscal year, such extensions are subject to both the availability of appropriated funds and a determination of continued need.

24. UNUSED BALANCES

Unless otherwise specified, all unused Blanket Order quantities and/or unexpended funds shall be automatically canceled on the expiration of the specified term. Similarly, for orders encompassing more than one fiscal year, unexpended balances of funding allotted for an individual fiscal year may be liquidated at the close of that fiscal year, at the City of Pawtucket's sole option.

25. MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Pursuant to the provisions of Title 37 Chapter 14.1of the General Laws, the City of Pawtucket reserves the right to apply additional consideration to offers, and to direct awards to bidders other than the responsive bid representing the lowest price where:

- a. the offer is fully responsive to the terms and conditions of the Request, and
- b. the price offer is determined to be within a competitive range (not to exceed 5% higher than the lowest responsive price offer) for the product or service, and
- c. the firm making the offer has been certified by the R.I. Department of Economic Development to be a small business concern meeting the criteria established to be considered a Minority Business Enterprise.

26. PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENT

In accordance with Title 37 Chapter 13 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, payment of the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for regular, overtime and other working conditions existing in the locality for each craft, mechanic, teamster, or type of workman needed to execute this work is a requirement for both contractors and subcontractors for all public works.

27. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE, HANDICAPPED ACCESS AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

Contractors of the City of Pawtucket are required to demonstrate the same commitment to equal opportunity as prevails under federal contracts controlled by Federal Executive Orders 11246, 11625, 11375 and 11830, and Title 28 Chapter 5.1 of the General Laws of Rhode Island.

Affirmative action plans shall be submitted by the contractor for review by the State Equal Opportunity Office. A contractor's failure to abide by the rules, regulations, contract terms and compliance reporting provisions as established shall be grounds for forfeiture and penalties as shall be established, including but not limited to suspension.

28. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENT

Contractors who do business with the City of Pawtucket and their employees shall abide by the State's drug-free workplace policy and the contractor shall so attest by signing a certificate of compliance.

29. TAXES

The City of Pawtucket is exempt from payment of excise, transportation and sales tax imposed by the Federal or State Government. These taxes should not be included in the proposal price. Exemption Certificates will be furnished upon request.

30. INSURANCE

All construction contractors, independent tradesmen, or firms providing any type of maintenance, repair, or other type of service to be performed on City of Pawtucket premises, buildings, or grounds are required to purchase and maintain coverage with a company or companies licensed to do business in the state as follows:

- a. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance
 - 1) Bodily Injury \$500,000 each occurrence/ \$1,000,000 annual aggregate
 - 2) Property Damage \$500,000 each occurrence /\$500,000 annual aggregate

Independent Contractors

Contractual - including construction hold harmless and other types of contracts or agreements in effect for insured operations

Completed Operations

Personal Injury (with employee exclusion deleted)

b. Automobile Liability Insurance

Combined Single Limit not less than \$150,000 each occurrence

Bodily Injury

Property Damage, and in addition non-owned and/or hired vehicles and equipment

c. Workers' Compensation Insurance

As required by the General Laws of Rhode Island.

The City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent reserves the right to consider and accept alternate forms and plans of insurance or to require additional or more extensive coverage for any individual requirement. Successful bidders shall provide certificates of coverage, reflecting the City of Pawtucket as an additional insured, to the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Office, forty-eight (48) hours prior to the commencement of work, as a condition of award. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in rejection of the offeror's bid.

31. BID SURETY

When requested, a bidder must furnish a Bid Bond or Certified Check for 5% of his bid, or for the stated amount shown in the solicitation. Bid Bonds must be executed by a reliable Surety Company authorized to do business in the State of Rhode Island. Failure to provide Bid Surety with bid may be cause for rejection of bid. The Bid Surety of any three bidders in contention will be held until an award has been made according to the specifications of each proposal. All others will be returned by mail within 48 hours following the bid opening. Upon award of a contract, the remaining sureties will be returned by mail unless instructed to do otherwise.

32. PERFORMANCE AND LABOR AND PAYMENT BONDS

A performance bond and labor and payment bond of up to 100% of an award may be required by the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent. Bonds must meet the following requirements:

- a. Corporation: The Bond must be signed by an official of the corporation above his/her official title and the corporate seal must be affixed over his/her signature.
- b. Firm or Partnership: The Bond must be signed by all of the partners and must indicate that they are " Doing Business As (name of firm)."
- c. Individual: The Bond must be signed by the individual owning the business and indicate "Owner."
- d. The Surety Company executing the Bond must be licensed to do business in the State of Rhode Island or Bond must be countersigned by a company so licensed.
- e. The Bond must be signed by an official of the Surety Company and the corporate seal must be affixed over his signature.
- f. Signatures of two witnesses for both the principal and the Surety must appear on the Bond.
- g. A Power of Attorney for the official signing of the Bond for the Surety Company must be submitted with the Bond.

33. SUSPENSION, DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

a. Suspension of a Contract by the City of Pawtucket

The City of Pawtucket reserves the right at any time and for any reason to suspend all or part of this contract, for a reasonable period, not to exceed sixty days, unless the parties agree to a longer period. The City of Pawtucket shall provide the contractor with written notice of the suspension order signed by the Purchasing Agent or his or her designee, which shall set forth the date upon which the suspension shall take effect, the date of its expiration, and all applicable instructions. Upon receipt of said order, the contractor shall immediately comply with the order and suspend all work under this contract as specified in the order. The contractor shall take all reasonable steps to mitigate costs and adverse impact to the work specified in the contract during the suspension period. Before the order expires, the City of Pawtucket shall either:

- 1. Cancel the suspension order;
- 2. Extend the suspension order for a specified time period not to exceed thirty (30) days; or

3. Terminate the contract as provided herein.

The contractor shall resume performance once a suspension order issued under this section is canceled or expires. If as a result of the suspension of performance, there is a financial or schedule impact upon the contract, an appropriate adjustment may be made by, or with the approval of, the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent. Any adjustment shall be set forth in writing. After a suspension order has been canceled or expires, the contractor shall provide any request for adjustment to the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent within thirty (30) days after resuming work performance.

b. Termination of a Contract by the City of Pawtucket

1. Termination for Default or Nonperformance

If, for any reason, the contractor breaches the contract by failing to satisfactorily fulfill or perform any obligations, promises, terms, or conditions, and having been given reasonable notice of and opportunity to cure such default, fails to take satisfactory corrective action within the time specified by the City of Pawtucket, the City of Pawtucket may terminate the contract, in whole or in part, the termination of all outstanding contracts or sub-contracts held by the contractor, and the suspension or debarment of the contractor from future procurements by giving written notice to the contractor specifying the date for termination. The City of Pawtucket shall endeavor to provide such notice at least seven (7) calendar days before the effective date of the termination.

A contractor who fails to commence within the time specified or complete an award made for repairs, alterations, construction, or any other service will be considered in default of contract. If contractor consistently fails to deliver quantities or otherwise perform as specified, the City of Pawtucket's Purchasing Agent reserves the right to terminate the contract and contract for completion of the work with another contractor and seek recourse from the defaulting contractor or his surety. In the event of a termination for default or nonperformance, in whole or in part, the City of Pawtucket may procure similar goods or services in a manner and upon terms it deems appropriate, and the contractor shall be liable for the excess costs incurred by the City of Pawtucket as a result of the contractor's default. The contractor, or its surety, agrees to promptly reimburse the City of Pawtucket for the excess costs, but shall have no claim to the difference should the replacement cost be less.

2. Termination Without Cause

The City of Pawtucket may terminate the contract in whole or in part without cause at any time by giving written notice to the contractor of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of such termination. The notice shall specify the part(s) of the contract being terminated and the effective termination date.

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the termination of the contract the contractor shall compile and submit to the City of Pawtucket an accounting of the work performed up to the date of termination. The City of Pawtucket may consider the following claims in determining reasonable compensation owed to the contractor for work performed up to the date of termination:

- a. contract prices for goods or services accepted under the contract;
- b. costs incurred in preparing to perform and performing the terminated portion of the contract; or
- any other reasonable costs incurred by the contractor as a result of the termination.

The total sum to be paid to the contractor shall not exceed the total contract price, less any payments previously made to the contractor, the proceeds from any sales of goods or manufacturing materials, and the contract price for work not terminated.

3. Contractor's Obligations in the Event of Termination

If the contract is terminated for any reason, or expires pursuant to its terms, the contractor shall transfer and deliver to the City of Pawtucket in the manner and to the extent directed by the City of Pawtucket:

- a. all finished or unfinished material prepared by the contractor; and
- b. all material, if any, provided to the contractor by the City of Pawtucket.

For the purposes of the contract, "material" shall include, but is not limited to, goods, supplies, parts, tools, machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, information, data, reports, summaries, tables, maps, charts, photographs, studies, recommendations, files, audiotapes, videotapes, records, keys, security badges, and documents.

If the contract is terminated for cause, the contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the City of Pawtucket for damages sustained because of any breach by the contractor. In such event, the City of Pawtucket may retain any amounts which may be due and owing to the contractor until such time as the exact amount of damages due the City of Pawtucket from the contractor has been determined by the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent. The City of Pawtucket may also set off any damages so determined against the amounts retained.

Upon termination of the contract, the contractor shall stop performance on the date specified, terminate any outstanding orders and subcontracts applicable to the terminated portion of the contract, and shall incur no further commitments or obligations in connection with the terminated performance. The contractor shall settle all liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and order generating from the terminated performance. The City of Pawtucket may direct the contractor to assign the contractor's right, title and interest under terminated orders or subcontracts to the City of Pawtucket or a third party.

Terminations of Purchase Order Contracts or Master Pricing Agreements shall require the signature of the City of Pawtucket Purchasing Agent or his designee. Notice of termination by either party shall be submitted in writing to the other party in accordance with the termination clause of the contract, or where no specific termination clause is included, written notice shall be provided no later than thirty (30) days before the expiration of the contract.

34. INDEMNITY

The contractor guarantees:

- a. To save the City of Pawtucket, its agents and employees, harmless from any liability imposed upon the City of Pawtucket arising from the negligence, either active or passive, of the contractor, as well as for the use of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted composition, secret process, patented or unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used in the performance of the contract of which the contractor is not the patentee, assignee or licensee.
- b. To pay for all permits, licenses and fees and give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the City of Pawtucket and of the State of Rhode Island.
- c. That the equipment offered is standard new equipment, latest model of regular stock product with all parts regularly used with the type of equipment offered; also, that no attachment or part has been substituted or applied contrary to manufacturer's recommendations and standard practice.

35. CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS

In addition to the specific requirements of the contract, construction and building repair contractors bear the following standard responsibilities:

- To furnish adequate protection from damage for all work and to repair damages
 of any kind, for which he or his workmen are responsible, to the building or
 equipment, to his own work, or to the work of other contractors;
- b. The contractor, its subcontractor(s) and their employees and/or agents, shall protect and preserve property in the contractor or subcontractor's possessions in which the City of Pawtucket has an interest, and any and all materials provided to the contractor or subcontractor by the City of Pawtucket;

- c. To clear and remove all debris and rubbish resulting from his work from time to time, as directed or required, a completion of the work leave the premises in a neat unobstructed condition, broom clean, and in satisfactory order and repair;
- d. To store equipment, supplies, and material at the site only upon approval by the City of Pawtucket, and at his own risk;
- e. To perform all work so as to cause the least inconvenience to the City of Pawtucket, and with proper consideration for the rights of other contractors and workmen:
- f. To acquaint themselves with conditions to be found at the site, and to assume responsibility for the appropriate dispatching of equipment and supervision of his employees during the conduct of the work;
- g. To ensure that his employees are instructed with respect to special regulations, policies, and procedures in effect for any City of Pawtucket facility or site, and that they comply with such rules, including but not limited to security policies or practices and/or criminal background checks for any employees and/or subcontractors;
- h. The contractor shall ensure that its employees or agents are experienced and fully qualified to engage in the activities and services required under the contract;
- i. The contractor shall ensure that at all times while services are being performed under this contract at least one of its employees or agents on the premises has a good command of the English language and can effectively communicate with the City of Pawtucket and its staff;
- j. The contractor and contractor's employees or agents shall comply with all applicable licensing and operating requirements required by federal or state law and shall meet accreditation and other generally accepted standards of quality in the applicable field of activity;
- k. The contractor shall secure and retain all employee-related insurance coverage for its employees and agents as required by law; and
- I. The contractor, subcontractor, and his or her employees and agents shall not disclose any confidential information of the City of Pawtucket to a third party. Confidential information means:
 - (1) Any information of a sensitive or proprietary nature, whether or not specially identified as confidential or proprietary; or
 - (2) Any information about the City of Pawtucket gained during the performance of a contract that is not already lawfully in the public domain.

36. FORCE MAJEURE

All orders shall be filled by the contractor with reasonable promptness, but the contractor shall not be held responsible for any losses resulting if the fulfillment of the terms of the contract shall be delayed or prevented by wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, or for any other acts not within the control of the contractor and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the contractor is unable to prevent.